After recording, please return to: **RMHOA** 55644 Wagon Master Way Bend, OR 97707

DESCHUTES COUNTY OFFICIAL RECORDS

\$103.00

2015-49905

12/10/2015 02:20:24 PM

\$55.00 \$11.00 \$21.00 \$10.00 \$6.00

2nd Amended and Restated **Bylaws** of the **River Meadows Homeowners Association**

As Approved by the Members in March 2015

River Meadows Homeowners Association - Amended Bylaws

Table of Contents

ARTICLE I - NAME AND LOCATION	
ARTICLE II – DEFINITIONS	1
Section 1 Association	1
Section 2 Properties	- 1
Section 3 Common Areas	. 1
Section 4 Lot	1
Section 5 Member	1
Section 6 Owner	1
Section 7 Declaration	1
Section 8 Declaring	. 1
ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIP	- 1
Section 1 Membership	1
Section 2 Loss of Membership	- 2
Section 3 Suspension of Membership	
ARTICLE IV – PROPERTY RIGHTS: RIGHT OF ENJOYMENT	. 2
Section 1 Common Area and Facilities	2
Section 2 Fees	2
ARTICLE V – ASSESSMENTS	2
Section 1 Assessments	2
Section 2 Enforcement of Liens	2
Section 3 Payment of Delinquent Assessments	. 3
Section 4 Fines	3
ARTICLE VI – DIRECTORS TERM OF OFFICE	_
Section 1 Number	_
Section 2 Election	. 3
Section 3 Removal and Vacancies	_
Section 4 Compensation	3
ARTICLE VII – MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS	3
Section 1 Annual Meeting	3
Section 2 Regular Meetings	3
Section 3 Special Meetings	3
Section 4 Action Taken Without a Meeting	3
Section 5 Quorum	3
ARTICLE VIII – NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	4
Section 1 Nomination	- 4
Section 2 Election	4

ARTICLE IX - POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS	4
Section 1 Powers	4
Section 2 Records	5
ARTICLE X – COMMITTEES	5
Section 1 Committee Appointment	
Section 2 Complaints	5
ARTICLE XI – MEETINGS OF MEMBERS	6
Section 1 Annual Meeting	6
Section 2 Special Meetings	6
Section 3 Notice of Meetings	6
Section 4 Place of Meeting	6
Section 5 Quorum	6
Section 6 Proxies	6
ARTICLE XII – OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES	6
Section 1 Enumeration of Officers	6
Section 2 Election of Officers	6
Section 3 Term	6
Section 4 Special Appointments	6
Section 5 Resignation and Removal	7
Section 6 Vacancies	7
Section 7 Multiple Offices	7
Section 8 Duties	7
(a) President	7
(b) Vice President	7
(c) Secretary	7
(d) Treasurer	7
ARTICLE XIII – BOOKS AND RECORDS	7
ARTICLE XIV – AMENDMENTS	7
Section 1 Bylaw Amendments	7
Section 2 Conflict	
ARTICLE XV – DISSOLUTION	8

River Meadows Homeowners Association - Amended Bylaws

ARTICLE I – NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Corporation is RIVER MEADOWS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, Inc., formerly known as Stage Stop Meadows Homeowners Association, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The principal office of the Corporation shall be located in Deschutes County, Oregon or such other place within the state of Oregon as set from time to time by the Board of Directors. Meetings of members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Oregon, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II – DEFINITIONS

<u>Section 1 Association:</u> "Association" shall mean and refer to RIVER MEADOWS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., its successors and assigns.

<u>Section 2 Properties:</u> "Properties" shall mean and refer to "RIVER MEADOWS", a subdivision, and such additional subdivisions as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

<u>Section 3 Common Areas:</u> "Common Area" shall mean all real property owned by the Association for the common use and enjoyment of the owners.

<u>Section 4 Lot:</u> "Lot" shall mean and refer to any plot of land shown upon any recorded subdivision map of the Properties with the exception of the Common Area.

<u>Section 5 Member:</u> "Member" shall mean and refer to every person or entity who holds membership in the Association.

<u>Section 6 Owner:</u> "Owner" shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more persons or entities, of a fee simple title to an Lot which is part of the Properties, including contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation.

<u>Section 7 Declaration:</u> "Declaration" shall mean the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions recorded in conjunction with the plating and recording of River Meadows, a subdivision, and such similar recorded Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to additional subdivisions brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.

<u>Section 8 Declaring:</u> "Declaring" shall mean and refer to RIVER MEADOWS, INC., an Oregon Corporation, its successors and assigns if such successor or assigns should acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from Declaring for the purpose of development.

ARTICLE III – MEMBERSHIP

Section 1 Membership: Every person or entity who is a record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any Lots that are subject by covenants of record to assessment by the Association, including contract sellers, shall be a member of the Association. The foregoing is not intended to include persons or entities who hold an interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation. Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot that is subject to assessment by the Association. Ownership of such Lot shall be the sole qualification of membership, subject to such uniform regulations, requirements, initiation fees, assessments, both regular and special, and use charges in respect to the use Corporation land

and facilities as may be from time to time promulgated by the Board of Directors of the Corporation and, subject, also, to such provisions relating to the transfer and revocation of membership status and rights as may be from time to time promulgated by the Board of Directors of the Corporation.

Section 2 Loss of Membership: Membership is lost or gained when the Board of Directors of the corporations has received evidence satisfactory to it that sale or purchase of any said land, as the case may be, has been made, and has ascertained to its satisfaction the name of the new owner and has changed the membership on the books of the Corporation accordingly; provided, however, that there shall be only one vote for each said lots, and if more than one owner is the owner of any said lots, then the one vote given to each lot shall be divided among the several owners in proportion to their ownership of the whole lot, or as such owners of the lot may agree among themselves in writing. If one owner owns more than one lot, that owner shall have as many votes as the lots owned. In the event there is more than one owner of a single lot and such owners of a single lot are unable to agree among themselves as to voting said one vote, then the Board of Directors of the Corporation may determine the proportionate share of the single vote allocated to each owner and the Board's determination shall be conclusive upon the parties so long as the internal geographic division of the land within the lot remains the same as between the various owners.

<u>Section 3 Suspension of Membership:</u> During any period in which a member shall be in default in the payment of annual or special assessment levied by the Association, the voting rights and right to use of recreational facilities of such member may be suspended by the Board of Directors until such assessment has been paid. Such rights of a member may also be suspended, after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed 60 days, for violation of any rules and regulations established by the Board of Directors governing the use of the Common Area and facilities.

ARTICLE IV – PROPERTY RIGHTS: RIGHT OF ENJOYMENT

Section 1 Common Area and Facilities: Each member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common Area and facilities as provided in the Declaration. Any member may delegate his right of enjoyment of the Common Area and facilities to the members of his family, or contract purchasers, who reside on the property. Such member shall notify the secretary in writing of the name of any such delegate. The rights and privileges of such delegate are subject to suspension to the same extend as those of the member.

<u>Section 2 Fees:</u> The declaration gives the Association the right to charge reasonable admission and other fees for the use of any recreational facilities situated upon the Common Area.

ARTICLE V – ASSESSMENTS

Section 1 Assessments: The membership of the Corporation shall be liable for the payment of such monthly service charges and other assessments as may from time to time be fixed and levied by the Board of Directors. Such assessment shall be levied equally on each residential lot and other land unit entitled to one vote that is then making use of or benefiting from the facilities of the Corporation. If such charge or assessments are not paid prior to delinquency, they shall bear interest at the rate of ten percent (10%) per annum from the date of delinquency, and the Board of Directors in its discretion may file a claim of lien as provided in these Bylaws and/or enforce the personal obligation of the owner as provided in the Declaration.

<u>Section 2 Enforcement of Liens:</u> If such claim of lien is filed, the Corporation shall have the right to foreclose the same in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of Oregon then in effect governing the foreclosure of mortgages of real property and the Corporation shall be entitled to all reasonable costs incurred in the foreclosure including attorneys' fees.

<u>Section 3 Payment of Delinquent Assessments:</u> At any time prior to foreclosure sale in such action, the delinquent member may pay said charges or assessments and interest, together with costs and attorneys' fees incurred by the Corporation to date of such payment, whereupon the Corporation will file for record of a satisfaction and release of its lien.

<u>Section 4 Fines:</u> Any fine levied by the Board of Directors, together with the costs of collecting the same (including collection costs and attorneys' fees), shall be the personal obligation of the responsible owner, as well as a lien against the lot of such owner, and may be collected and enforced in like manner with other assessments of the Corporation against such responsible owner.

ARTICLE VI – DIRECTORS TERM OF OFFICE

<u>Section 1 Number:</u> The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of no more than seven (7) Directors who need not be members of the Association. The number of directors may be changed by appropriate amendment of these Bylaws.

<u>Section 2 Election:</u> No term limits. HOA members will elect each Board Member Representative for three year terms.

<u>Section 3 Removal and Vacancies:</u> Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the members of the Association. In addition, all Board Members are required to attend a minimum of seven (7) of the twelve (12) meetings per year, or may be removed from their position by the remaining Board Members. Physical presence is required to constitute attendance to a meeting.

<u>Section 4 Compensation:</u> No director shall receive compensation for any service he/she may render to the association that is directly related to the duties of the Board. Board Members will not be excluded from pay for performance of non-board related duties. Snow plowing, pool monitoring, or field mowing are possible examples. All positions are open to anyone interested in applying. Hiring will be performed by the Operations Manager.

ARTICLE VII – MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

<u>Section 1 Annual Meeting:</u> Immediately following each annual meeting of members, the Board of Directors shall hold an annual meeting of directors for the purpose of organization, election of officers and the transaction of other business. Notice of such meetings is hereby dispensed.

<u>Section 2 Regular Meetings:</u> Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly without notice, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board.

<u>Section 3 Special Meetings:</u> Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the Association or by any two directors, after not less than three (3) days notice to each director.

<u>Section 4 Action Taken without a Meeting:</u> The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting that they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors.

<u>Section 5 Quorum:</u> Every act or decision made by the Board that requires a vote, requires a majority of all seven (7) Board Members.

ARTICLE VIII – NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

<u>Section 1 Nomination:</u> The HOA office will post notification of the number of vacant seats for an upcoming Board election 90 days prior to the Annual Meeting. Members interested in running for a seat on the Board must notify the HOA office at least 60 days in advance of the election and submit their bio page. Ballots with all candidates will be mailed to entire membership for voting. Election results will be announced at the Annual Meeting. Nominations from the floor will not be accepted.

<u>Section 2 Election:</u> Election to the Board of Directors shall be by written ballot. At such election the members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

ARTICLE IX – POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

<u>Section 1 Powers:</u> Subject to limitations of the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws, and of the Oregon Corporation Code as to action to be authorized or approved by the members, and subject to the duties of directors as prescribed by the Bylaws, all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under authority of, and the business and affairs of the corporation shall be controlled by the Board of Directors, without prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is hereby expressly declared that the directors shall have the following powers, to wit:

- (a) To adopt, publish and enforce rules and regulations, and the power to levy reasonable fines for violations of the Declaration, Bylaws or such rules and regulations, after giving notice and an opportunity to be heard.
- (b) To select and remove all officers, agents and employees of the Corporation, prescribe such powers and duties for them as may not be inconsistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws, fix their compensation and require from then security for faithful service.
- (c) To conduct, manage and control the affairs and business of the Corporation, to manage and maintain the property of the Corporation and other related facilities of the Corporation, and to make such rules and regulations therefor no inconsistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, or the Bylaws, as they may deem best.
- (d) To adopt, make and use a corporate seal, and to prescribe forms of certificates for membership, and to alter the form of such seal and of such certificates from time to time, as in their judgment they may deem best, provided such seal and such certificates shall at all times comply with the provisions of law.
- (e) To authorize the issue of certificates of membership to such persons as shall be eligible for membership.
- (f) Board of Directors will have the authority to appoint an authorized agent to represent the Board for specific duties consistent with the conditions and intent of the River Meadows HOA Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. Examples include an attorney, Property Manager, or Utility Manager.
- (g) To fix and levy from time to time monthly service charges and other assessments upon the members of the Corporation for the purpose of providing adequate service to the members and of properly managing and performing its functions; to determine and fix the due date for the payment of such monthly user service charges and other assessments and the date upon which the same shall become delinquent. Such

charges and assessments shall be charged or assessed the manner and amount necessary to provide adequate service to the members, to make authorized expenditures, and to provide adequate reserves for replacements. Should any member fail to pay such charges or assessments before delinquency, the Board of Directors in its discretion and insofar as the law permits, is authorized to file for record in the office of the County Clerks or Recorder of Deschutes County, Oregon, a claim of lien of such delinquent charges or assessments against the estate and improvements thereon owned by the delinquent member, and to proceed to foreclose same.

- (h) To enforce the provisions of any covenants running with the land as may benefit the Corporation and its members and to enforce these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, and the other rules and regulations of the Corporation.
- (i) To contract and to pay for maintenance, repair, construction, reconstruction and all work and materials as may be necessary to carry out the purpose of the Corporation, and the other rules and regulations of the Corporation.
- (j) To contract and pay for fire, casualty, liability and other insurance insuring the members, employees and officers of the Corporation, including bonding of the members of any management body.
- (k) To pay taxes and special assessments which are or would become a lien on the entire tract described above.
 - (I) To delegate its powers.

Section 2 Records: The Board of Directors shall:

- (a) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the members at the annual meeting of the members or at any special meeting, when such statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the members who are entitled to vote;
- (b) Issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand of any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not the assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of the certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment.

ARTICLE X – COMMITTEES

<u>Section 1 Committee Appointment:</u> The association shall appoint an Architectural Control Committee, as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Bylaws. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purposes.

<u>Section 2 Complaints:</u> It shall be the duty of each committee to receive complaints from members on any matter involving Association functions, duties, and activities within its field of responsibility. It shall dispose of such complaints as it deems appropriate or refer them to such other committee, director or officer of the Association as is further concerned with the matter presented.

ARTICLE XI – MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

<u>Section 1 Annual Meeting:</u> Annual Meetings will be held within 30 days of the anniversary of the previous year's meeting. Currently, the Annual Meeting is held on the July 4th weekend.

<u>Section 2 Special Meetings:</u> Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of one-fourth (1/4) of the membership.

<u>Section 3 Notice of Meetings:</u> Written notice of each meeting of the members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least 15 days prior to such meeting to each member entitled to vote, addressed to the member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such member to and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

<u>Section 4 Place of Meeting:</u> All annual meetings of members shall be held at the principal office of the corporation or at such other place as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors, and all other meetings of members shall be held either at the principal office or at any other place within the State of Oregon, which may be designated either by the Board of Directors pursuant to authority herein granted to said Board, or by the written consent of all members entitled to vote thereat, given either before or after the meeting and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation.

<u>Section 5 Quorum:</u> The presence at the meeting of members entitled to cast, or of proxies entitled to cast, one-tenth (1/10) of the votes of the membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or these Bylaws. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the members entitled to vote thereat shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

<u>Section 6 Proxies:</u> At all meetings of the association members, each member may vote in person, by proxy, or electronic mail. Email will constitute a recognized means of contact, communication, and voting for all elections. Email address must be from the confirmed address on file at the HOA office. All votes will be kept on file for a minimum of three (3) years.

<u>ARTICLE XII – OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES</u>

<u>Section 1 Enumeration of Officers:</u> The officers of this Association shall be a President, and a Vice President, who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors, as Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.

<u>Section 2 Election of Officers:</u> The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the members.

<u>Section 3 Term:</u> The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for one (1) year unless he/she shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.

<u>Section 4 Special Appointments:</u> The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.

<u>Section 5 Resignation and Removal:</u> Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

<u>Section 6 Vacancies:</u> A vacancy in any office may be filled in the manned prescribed for regular election. The officer elected to such vacancy shall serve the remainder of the term of the officer replaced.

<u>Section 7 Multiple Offices:</u> The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of the Article.

Section 8 Duties: The duties of the officers are as follows:

- (a) <u>President:</u> The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes.
- (b) Vice President: The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of absence, inability or refusal to act; and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Board.
- (c) Secretary: The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and of the members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring said seal; sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of members; keep appropriate current records showing the members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.
- (d) Treasurer: The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Association, keep proper books to be reviewed by a public accountant at the completion of each fiscal year; and shall prepare an annual budget and statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the members.

ARTICLE XIII – BOOKS AND RECORDS

The books and records of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any member at the principal office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

<u>ARTICLE XIV – AMENDMENTS</u>

<u>Section 1 Bylaw Amendments:</u> These Bylaws may be amended at a regular or special meeting of the members, by a vote of a majority of a quorum of members present in person or by proxy.

Section 2 Conflict: In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control and in the case of conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XV – DISSOLUTION

In the event this Corporation ceases the carrying on of its purposes and powers and is dissolved, the assets thereof shall be applied and distributed in accordance with Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation.

River Meadows HOA, President, Ray Yillik

River Meadows HOA, Secretary, David Wayland

State of OREGON County of Deschutes

OFFICIAL STAMP MERESA M GRAY COMMISSION NO. 922093 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBER 12, 2017

Signed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on Sept 4, 2015 by David D Wayland Raymond A Uillik.

OFFICIAL STAMP THERESA M GRAY NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON COMMISSION NO. 922093 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES NOVEMBER 12, 2017